ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2003
1:32 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative JimHolm Co-Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Al bert Kookesh

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Cheryll Heinze
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 67
"An Act relating to construction of highways by the Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities."

- MOVED HB 67 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 96

"An Act nam ng the Sven Haakanson, Sr. Airport at O d Harbor."
- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED to 2/25/03

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 67
SHORT TI TLE: CONSTRUCTI ON OF HI GHWAYS BY DOTPF
SPONSOR(S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) HOLM

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 29/ 03 0085 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 29/ 03 0085 (H) TRA, FIN

02/ 13/ 03 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 13/ 03 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

02/ 18/ 03 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 18/ 03 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed to
2/ 20/ 03> -- Meeting Cancel ed

02/ 20/ 03 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 20, 2003



W TNESS REG STER

BARBARA COTTI NG, Staff

to Representative JimHolm

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 67 on behalf of Representative
Hol m sponsor.

DENNI S POSHARD, Legi sl ative Liaison

and Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the admnistration doesn't
have an official position on HB 67.

FRANK T. RICHARDS, State Mintenance Engi neer

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions pertaining to HB 67.

KEVIN RI TCH E

Al aska Muni ci pal League,

Al aska Conference of Mayors

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 67 in its
present form

JEFF ALLI NG

Al can Bui |l ders;

Menber, Associ ated Builders and Contractors

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 67, presenting his
vi ew only.

STEVE WEAVER, Director

Envi ronnent al Engi neering Program

Al aska Native Health Consortium

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 67.

GRAHAM STORY

Nome Chanber of Commerce
Nome, Al aska

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- February 20, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 67 and provided
suggesti ons.

JERRY DRAKE, Menber

Bet hel City Counci

Bet hel , Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in adamant opposition to HB 67.

JI M ADAMS, Director

Mai nt enance and Operations

Nor t hern Regi on

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

None, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 67, offering "food for
t hought . "

JUDY NMARTI NSON

Nort hcoast Construction

Nonme, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 67.

STUART JACQUES ( ph)
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on his own behalf in favor of HB
67.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-3, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR BEVERLY MASEK called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:32 p.m Representatives present
at the call to order were Representatives Msek, Holm Fate,
Kohring, and Kapsner. Represent ati ve Kookesh arrived while the
meeting was in progress.

HB 67- CONSTRUCTI ON OF H GHWAYS BY DOT&PF

CO CHAI R MASEK announced the order of business would be HOUSE
BILL NO. 67, "An Act relating to construction of highways by the
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities.”

Nunber 0081

BARBARA COTTING Staff to Representative Jim Holm Al aska State
Legislature, the bill's sponsor, noted that additions to the
commttee packet included a revised fiscal note from the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- February 20, 2003



Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF), a
copy of the "Saint Mary's Airport Road Rehabilitation Final
Conmpl etion Summary Report," a statenent of opposition from the
Al aska Municipal League, and a statenment of support from
Associ ated Builders and Contractors. M. Cotting explained that
Al aska Statute requires that construction and maintenance be
done by conpetitive bid, except in the case of very snall
projects, where the state is allowed to use what is terned a
"force account.” She said she understood "force account"” as
referring to situations in which the state uses its own forces
to do the work, as opposed to opening up a project to the
conpetitive bidding process. She said that over the years,
instead of confining this to small projects, many |arge projects
have been done by the state using the force account nethod.
From Co-Chair Holms point of view, she said, this takes dollars
out of the private sector and out of the industry. It also
requires the state to maintain expensive equipnment and trained
personnel year-round, and it particularly renoves those projects
from oversight by the public.

Nunber 0245

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH noted that the phrase "many |arge
projects” had been used, and asked for an exanple of a |arge
proj ect.

M5. COTTING replied that the Saint Mary's project was an exanple
of a large project.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said her wunderstanding was that Saint
Mary's was not a large project, as it was approximately $1
mllion. She said force accounts only conprise 2.2 to 3 percent
of the total DOT&F budget, which is analogous to "crunbs off
the pie.” She suggested further «clarification of what
constitutes a | arge project.

Number 0336

CO CHAIR HOLM speaking as the sponsor of HB 67, suggested that
the Saint Mary's project was not small, as it cost $2 mllion
470 thousand. He said HB 67 has to do with the application of
funds and how funds are spent. Referring to the packet, he
pointed to fiscal year 2002, Item nunber 001, preventative
mai nt enance, in the "DOI&F Force Account Report." He said in

this case, DOT&PF spends $8,860 mllion for the Northern Region
Wi |l e he understands the departnment doesn't want sonmeone | ooking
over its shoulder, as a contractor hinself, he believes the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 20, 2003



amount of $250,000 is not "chicken feed." Most people in his
busi ness would bid on any job worth $250,000, or less, in the
Bush; if the job was nuch nore than $100,000, they would
certainly apply to do it. Another issue is that the state owns
a lot of equipnent that it pays for out of the equi pnent-hi ghway
fund. In the case of Saint Miry's, the city bought the
equi pnment, the state leased it, and at the end of project, the
City of Saint Mary's has owned the equipnent. He said he does
not begrudge inproving the town's financial position, but it may
not be in best interest of the state to do those Kkinds of
proj ects. He reiterated that he likes the conpetitive bidding
process.

Number 0538

REPRESENTATI VE FATE referred to the word "large" and to the
proposed anmendnment to AS 19.10.170(a) [in HB 67] and its
correlation to the dollar anount of $250,000. He suggested this
as being the guts of the discussion and said he was of the mnd
that any debate would focus on the nmerits as to why this anount
was chosen. He said he was not unconfortable with the anmount of
$250, 000, but realized there nust be some neasure as to how this
figure had been derived.

CO CHAIR HOLM said a lot of work had been done on this bill |ast
year, and on the conpanion bill from Senator Cowdery's office in
whi ch the sanme figure of $250,00 is used. He said the consensus
is that this is a good nunber, and he would like to keep things
at a consistent level. He added that |ast year, the figure had
even been raised to $1 nmillion in attenpts to get the bill
t hrough t he House.

Nunmber 0661

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what types of projects are done in
the state for under $250,000. She suggested that a |lot nore of
such projects could be done in Fairbanks or Anchorage, as
opposed to Tuntutuliak, for exanple.

CO CHAI R MASEK suggested that DOT&PF m ght address that question
| ater in the neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said he wanted to determ ne what was in
the best interests for the people of Alaska. He said that force
accounts offer a lot of jobs to local areas that normally
woul dn't have those jobs, and he wondered if limting this to
$250, 000 would be of benefit to those in the state who could

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 20, 2003



afford bonding, people like the sponsor, perhaps, who m ght
benefit fromthis limtation.

CO CHAIR HOLM responded that he doesn't claim to speak for all
Al askans, and that the possibility of bidding on jobs was not a
personal reason for the suggested limtation. He noted that he
does not personally deal wth asphalt, and that a lot of these
dollars are for preventative naintenance and for roads which he
does not have a personal stake in. He added that a | ot of these
projects are in the Northern Region, while others refer to
streets in the Juneau area. He reiterated that he believes in
t he public bidding process.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH referred to Governor Mirkowski's stated
desire for Alaska to benefit economcally, and said that the
Saint Mary's project was of benefit to Al askans, both in terns
of jobs and equipnent. He said he was trying to determ ne what
was best, and that he was willing to be convinced.

COCHAIR MASEK said she wanted to allow tinme for public
testimony, which would hopefully answer sonme of the stated
guesti ons.

Number 0916

DENNI S POSHARD, Legislative Liaison and Special Assistant,
Ofice of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities, introduced other DOT&PF staff - Mark O Brien

Chi ef Contracts O ficer, and Fr ank T. Ri char ds, State

Mai nt enance Engi neer. He said that the new admnistration
hasn't yet taken a position on this bill, is reviewng
Adm nistrative Oder 199, and is trying to decide wupon its
position on the issue of force accounts. He pointed out that
this bill would affect less than 3 percent of the total anount
of the departnent's annual capital program The depart nent

agrees that it should not be conpeting with the private sector
and that for activities where the private sector can do better,
jobs are contracted out, which is why the departnment routinely
contracts out nore than 97 percent of its program He expl ai ned
that of that |ess-than-3 percent that they choose to do by force
account, over half of that noney goes to the private sector
anyway because when [DOT&PF] works with its own DOT&PF enpl oyees
by force account, it still has to buy mterials and |ease
equi pnent from the private sector, and often enploy private-
sector services for participating in their projects.

Number 1052

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- February 20, 2003



MR. POSHARD explained that this bill would affect force account
projects that are transferred, for exanple, to the Bureau of
I ndian Affairs, the Indian Health Service, or |ocal governnents.

Anot her type of force account project that this bill would
affect would be nmintenance projects that the departnent does
with its own nmaintenance forces. He said there are sone

specific line items in the capital budget and in the statew de
transportation inprovenent program for things |ike bridge repair
or pavenent rehabilitation, and that each spring and sumrer a
porti on of DOT&PF mai nt enance enpl oyees are converted from being
paid fromthe general fund mai ntenance budget to being paid from
the capital fund budget. Essentially, in the sunmer those
enpl oyees do what they normally do wunder the general fund
mai nt enance program except that it is done under a capital

proj ect. He explained that the reason is to be able to keep a
trai ned workforce enployed, wthout having to lay them off or
having to rehire and train enployees in the fall. If the
departnment didn't do that, it would have a pretty serious

managenent decision, determning either to lay off enployees
every spring - to keep a cushion in the personal services |ine
item so that the departnent could pay for overtine when needed
for major weather events in winter - or to keep enployees and in

the wnter, having very |little overtine to deal wth any
extraordi nary snow events. The third type of force account
project that this bill wuld affect is an offshoot of the

mai nt enance the departnent does, which are projects |ike Saint
Mary's. As indicated in the fiscal note, there are sonme savings
achi eved by working wth DOT&PF mai nt enance forces as opposed to
contracting out. Al t hough the departnment has no position on
this bill, should it pass, there wuld be sone difficult
managenent deci sions up ahead.

Nunber 1221

CO- CHAIR HOLM asked if the force account process indicates that
the departnment does not want to lay off enployees, thereby
avoiding paying overtinme in wnter, but still paying huge
guantities of overtime in the sumrer.

MR. POSHARD responded that it has paid overtinme for maintenance
enpl oyees in sumer, and has paid overtine out of these capita
line itens with force account work. One reason is to maxim ze
the benefit of that type of work, that is, to conplete as nuch
of the work as possible in the sumer, when the weather is
agreeable for work pertaining to the patching of cracked
seal ings or guardrails.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 20, 2003



CO CHAIR HOLM asked how much of the $11 mllion 180 thousand,
the total for this year's force account, could be done by the
private sector.

MR. POSHARD said the question was difficult to answer and that
if the departnent chose to contract out, the private sector
woul d be happy to fill the need and do the work. There nay be a
few itenms that couldn't be done, or that wuld be nore
efficiently done by the departnent, but feasibly the work could
be contracted out.

COCHAIR HOLM asked for an exanple of sonething the private
sector could not do for the state.

Number 1339

FRANK T. RICHARDS, State Maintenance Engineer, Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner, Department of Transportation & Public Facilities,
said although there are features of the work that maintenance
does that the private sector could do, it is really a question
of cost-effectiveness. For exanple, if there is a particular
bridge, with one small piece of guardrail to repair as well as a
bushing or shim that needs repair, that work could be done by
the contracting effort, except the dollar anpbunt would be so
small, it would be nore cost-effective to use nai ntenance forces
when they're there.

CO CHAIR HOLM rephrased his question and asked if it would be
better for the public sector to take the risk of having
machinery sit around, thereby letting the private sector take
the risk, and advertising over nmany projects rather than just
one or two projects that the state conmes up wth.

MR. RI CHARDS responded that when the departnent utilizes
specialized equipnent for force account efforts, in many
instances it contracts for that piece of equipnment, and mnakes
the determnation at that tine, based on the quantity of work,
as to whether or not it is nore cost-effective to contract out
for the entire effort or for the wutilization of a piece of
equi pnent with state forces. In the instance when the
department purchases specialized equipnent to be used by state
forces, it is with a clear understanding that the piece of
equi pnrent will be utilized for that particular project and for
subsequent projects, so that it will be cost-effective. He said
[the departnent] reviews rates through published blue book rates

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- February 20, 2003



and contracted rates to ensure that it is in the best interest
of the state to purchase that particul ar piece of equipnent.

Nunber 1466

CO-CHAIR HOLM asked if DOT&F s purchasing of equipnent is
appropriate and cost-effective, and whether it could be done
better by the private sector.

MR. RICHARDS replied that in general terns, the equi pnment DOT&PF
operates is multipurpose equipnent, whether it is an eight-yard
dunp truck that is able to handle snow plowng as well as
material hauling, or whether it is a grader, that can be used
for "bluetop grading” as well as snow plowing in the wintertine.
He said it sel dom purchases specialized equi pnent.

CO-CHAIR HOLM rephrased the question by prefacing it with a
statenent. He said if there were not dunp trucks, [Caterpillars
("Cats")] or guardrail nachines in Al aska, then he mght accept
the argunent that because of Alaska' s hugeness or econony of
scale, the state could purchase such equipment and utilize it in

the best interests of the people who live in the state.
However, because the equipnment and workforce are there to be
utilized, and because people in the private sector - good
enpl oyees, union enployees, people with talent - are avail able

and could be utilized on these projects, why would governnent
enpl oyees be better suited to provide this service than the
private sector?

Number 1579

MR. POSHARD said the departnent has developed a Ilevel of
efficiency in maintaining its equipnent fleet, and in using
DOT&PF enpl oyees to maintain roads and airports. He said there
is no question, if that were the desire, that maintenance could
be privatized, and it may or my not be cost-effective.
However, that's not really what this force account bill is
about . He said this refers to certain line itenms, a small
portion of the capital budget, used to do nmintenance work.
There are only certain activities the departnent can do; nost of
those do not require specialized equipnent, and when they do,
the department often doesn't own or maintain the equipnment but
chooses to lease it. He said [DOT&PF] had a partnering neeting
with ABC [Association of Building Contractors], where a few
i nstances were brought to their attention where it was believed
that the state had purchased specialized equi pnent, but was not
making efficient use of it. He said [ABCs] point may be valid

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- February 20, 2003



and [DOT&PF] will certainly look into that. As a general rule,
for force account work, the type of equipnent used is either
equi pnent the departnment already has that is needed year-round
for other purposes, and the funding is shifted for that
equi pnment during the period of tinme that it is being used on the
capital project, or it is specialized equipnment that the
departnment is |easing.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked if there was any tineline as to
when the new admi nistration would take a position on this bill

MR. POSHARD said he was hesitant to give a specific date, but
assured the commttee that this has been brought to the top of
the list of items that the conm ssioner needs to deal wth,
i ncluding Adm ni strative Order 199.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what projects take place in the
state for $250,000 and the extent to which projects are covered

in urban versus rural areas for that anount. Representati ve
Kapsner asked for percentages of the three types of projects
that force accounts affect. She comrented that she finds it
bewi | dering that the Saint Mary's project has gotten people's
hackles up, since it's crunbs in light of DOI&F s enornous
budget .

Nunber 1768

MR. POSHARD referred to the "DOT&PF Force Account Report” for
the year 2002, and said that nmintenance activities nmake up al
but about $1.5 mllion of the $11.2 mllion, which was the total
anount of force account maintenance activities; a sizeable
portion of that ended up in the private sector anyway. Only 40
percent was related to DOT&PF personnel, personal services, and
equi pnent, as the rest went to the private sector. He said for
2002, a total of about $1.5 mllion was force account projects
that the departnment transferred to other agencies and which they
did not do with their own forces. He added that the Saint
Mary's information was listed in the year 2000.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER noted that $1.5 million was out of $11.2
mllion for force account work, but inquired as to the amount of
the total budget.

MR. POSHARD responded that $505 million was the total budget,

indicating that the $1.5-million anobunt transferred to other
agenci es was about .2 or .3 percent.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 20, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER restated her second question, which
referred to the dollar anobunts for the three types of projects
that M. Poshard referred to earlier

Nunmber 1888

CO CHAIR MASEK asked if sonmething witten could be provided to
the comm ttee.

MR. PCSHARD asked if Representative Kapsner was |ooking for
projects, in general, of less than $250,000 that the depart nment
does, or for a breakdown of projects that the departnent chooses
to transfer to other agencies. In response to Representative's
Kapsner request for both pieces of information, M. Poshard said
t hose could be provided to the commttee.

Nunber 1920

KEVIN RITCH E, Al aska Muinicipal League, Al aska Conference of
Mayors, said their commttee |ooked at the bill and does not
recoomend adoption of the bill in its present form He

menti oned the process that was entered into over the sumrer, as
a result of discussions from |ast year, and he referred to a
|l ong-term conflict between contracting and force accounting
t hroughout the state, not just in transportation projects but in
other areas as well. He said there were good sessions that
i nvol ved nunerous neetings and included key affected parties
from state agencies, federal agencies, general contractors, AFL-
CIO, Native corporations, the nunicipal |eague, and others. He
said people aired issues, and the Saint Mary's project received
a fair anount of discussion. He added that he thinks the Saint
Mary's project is fairly unique as far as force accounts go. In
Al aska, an inportant part of rural economes is tenporary work,
such as work that is available through force account projects.
On the other hand, contractors are rightfully concerned that a
force account contract does not have to pay Davis-Bacon wages

He said there are obvious conpetitive issues between contractors
and force account projects, and that because both sides have a
fair issue, a great deal of discussion and conprom se took
pl ace, which was acconplished under the adm nistrative order.
He said the admnistrative order was from the prior
adm nistration and needs to be |looked at by the current
adm ni strati on.

Number 2030

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- February 20, 2003



MR R TCH E continued, to solve the local hire issue, sone
productive and unprecedented discussions on training rural
residents resulted from that process. On the equity and pay
issue, the Departnent of Labor [and W rkforce Devel opnent]
proposed additional salary schedules for force account projects
that would nore closely mrror Davis-Bacon wages, in a training
sense, which would bring the two sides closer together.

Nunmber 2088

JEFF ALLING Omer, Alcan Builders; Menber, Associated Buil ders
and Contractors (ABC), said his views do not necessarily
represent ABC. He said his ire was raised when he |earned of
the Saint Mary's project froma fellow contractor. He spoke to
M. Kookesh's question, and said that it makes good economc
sense for contractors to work on rural projects because they
hire locals at the prevailing wage rate, which is under Title

36, the Davis-Bacon wage rate, which benefits the villagers. It
is also economcally sound for contractors, since bringing
workers into a village could cost $75 - $160 a day. Q her

benefits to the village include shipping equipnent in and out;

renting of housing by the supervisory contractors; spending
noney on air travel, which puts additional noney into the |oca

airline industry; and an additional unspoken cultural benefit,

nanely, when contractors work in the villages they neet a |ot of
great people. He said at the last job they did in Nonme, the
project lasted for four and a half or five nonths, and they
hired seven or eight skilled and wunskilled individuals from
Nore. About 10 years ago, they renodeled the federal building
and did the sane thing.

MR, ALLING stated that a better bidding process often translates
into added value for the state, which generally helps the state;
enhancenment of the free enterprise systemis sonething the state
shoul d take very seriously. He said that although reference is
bei ng nade to maybe .2 percent of the budget, that .2 percent is
inportant to him as a general contractor, and although that is
not a lot of noney in the overall picture, it is especially
inmportant to contractors who reside in those conmunities. In
response to Co-Chair Masek's question, he said he was in favor
of HB 67. He added that a gentlenman from the operator's union
who was not able to testify today, had nentioned that the dollar
amount of $250,000 was, to him a |arge project.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what rumors he had heard about the
Saint Mary's project that had upset him

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- February 20, 2003



Number 2350

MR. ALLING said he talked with a highway contractor in None,
hopeful | y sonmebody who would be testifying today, who was upset
over the size of the project and the direction the state was
taking in Western Alaska; she had indicated that it hurt her
conpany in a big way.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said there is a serious economc
situation in rural Alaska and that 10 years ago, on the average,
fam lies would nmake about $6,000 per year fishing, but don't get
that anount anynore. The Saint Mary's project was an effort to
help famlies who were in dire straits to get back on their
feet.

TAPE 03-3, SIDE B
Number 2374

CO CHAIR MASEK pointed out that the discussion was getting off
base by focusing on rural funding and jobs rather than on force
accounts.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she thought it was gernane to
address projects in rural Al aska and across the state in |ight
of the $250, 000 anount.

CO- CHAIR MASEK said the conmttee was dealing with HB 67, not
the |l ogistics of wages.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said he would appreciate the |atitude of
being all owed to have the discussion.

Number 2331

STEVE WEAVER, Director, Envi ronnent al Engi neering Program

Al aska Native Health Consortium said his organization was not
in favor of HB 67. The consortium builds sanitation facilities
in comunities throughout rural Al aska, and often partners wth
the Indian Health Service to build sanitation facilities, access
roads, and boardwal ks. Through that process, DOT&PF is able to
pi ggyback on existing projects, and is able to deliver service
at a lower unit cost and to provide faster service for citizens
who need roads, because things are already in place. He said
because they are participants in AO0L99 [Admnistrative O der
199] there is a structured training program that allows |oca

residents to participate and helps to build a pool of trained
construction workers in rural Al aska. He said he saw a problem

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- February 20, 2003



with language in the bill, as it renoves DOT&PF s nmanagenent
flexibility, which would allow for working with prograns such as
theirs to deliver better value to citizens.

Number 2271

GRAHAM STORY, None Chanber of Commerce, spoke in support of HB
67, except for the language referring to the arbitrary anmount of
$250, 000. He suggested strengthening the phrase, "appears to be
in the best interests of the state" or nmaking the requirenents
tougher for the state to neet before going into force
accounti ng.

Nunber 2222

JERRY DRAKE, Menber, Bethel Gty Council, said he was adanmantly
opposed to HB 67. Very few comunities can take on these
proj ects because they don't have the right equipnment and people.
Furthernore, wages are very gernane to this debate. He said
when a contractor does a small project in a rural conmmunity,
maybe a few people get hired, but not many. However, if the
work is done by force account, a lot of people in the comunity
wor K. He wondered if anyone has studied how many people are

then taken off of welfare and are able to take care of
t hensel ves, since that would be a large savings to the state
t hat nobody seens to be tal king about. He said that a lot of
wor k was done during the past year, crafting the adm nistrative
order that is currently on the table, and that HB 67 and the
conpani on Senate bill are a slap in the face to all the people
who wor ked hard.

Nunber 2130

JIM  ADAMS, Director, Mai nt enance and QOperati ons, Nor t her n
Regi on, Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities, read
the foll ow ng testinony:

On a nuch snmaller scale, the federal preventative
mai nt enance program nmakes a substantial difference in
the condition of None area roads. Since very few STIP
[ St at ewi de Transportation | mpr ovenent Pr ogr anij
projects planned out this way score high enough to
cone to fruition, force account work perfornmed under
the preventative maintenance programis what is saving
a portion of our roads now. The Saint Mary's project
was a part of the fish disaster situation, and this
pl ayed a part (indisc.).

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- February 20, 2003



MR. ADAMS, in response to a question from Co-Chair Msek asking
if he was for or against the forced accounting process said he
was just offering food for thought.

Nunber 2064

JUDY MARTINSON, Northcoast Construction, a 22-year general
contracting conpany that hires 90 to 100 percent |ocal people,
said that their work has been eroded by DOT&PF forces and, in
particular, the Saint Miry's road, which was not done by
conpetitive bid; it was done by DOT&PF. The villagers were paid
| ess than Davis-Bacon wages, and equipnment was purchased,
indirectly through the city, to do the work. She said there is
very little work in Northwest Alaska, and what's there is being
done by the state. She said her business has had to |let people
go; that their equipnent sits; and that they send their
equi pnment out on the barge, while DOT&PF forces bring equi pnent
in. She asked, "What's wong with this picture?" She said the
3 percent previously referred to has a large inpact, and that
the "DOT&PF Force Account Report" shows a skewed dollar anount,
since the 3 percent is for |abor only.

M5. MARTI NSON said state and city forces are getting stronger,
while [Northcoast Construction] is being put out of business:

its revenues used to be up to $2.5 nmillion and now are down to
$10 thousand to $20 thousand. She said if what is going on now
is not socialism she doesn't know what is. She acknow edged

that the Saint Mary's project resulted froma poor fishing year,
but she heard that when actual work was being performed, people
were fishing. She said for villagers to have nore noney in
their pockets, the contractors pay Davis-Bacon wages, which are
a |l ot higher than what tenporary, state-hire personnel are paid,
and it is done in a denocratic system She said the stronger
that governnment becones and the weaker the private sector
beconmes, so does society and freedom go down the drain. She
testified in favor of HB 67 to solve this problem

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what other contracts were |ost due
to force accounting.

M5. MARTINSON replied that contracts weren't |ost because [her
conpany] did not get the opportunity to bid in the first place.
She said it was hard to quantify because there is not nuch work
in the area, and that work is not available for bidding. She
enphasi zed that Saint Mary's was a big issue because her

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -15- February 20, 2003



busi ness was really | ooking forward to being able to bid on that
job, but it was taken off the bid schedul e.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what other projects were not
available to be bid on, since the figure M. Martinson stated
was alarmng - dropping from $2.5 mllion down to $10 thousand
to $20 thousand. She asked what other factors entered into the
alarmng drop in incone.

M5. MARTINSON said the only work in the area was naintenance,
which is listed in the force account report, although she didn't
know the specific breakdown. She added that they are grateful
for the small mai ntenance contract that they have for next year.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she hoped things would got better
for M. Martinson wunder the new admnistration, wth the
governor's commtnent to building roads, and said that she was
sorry to hear of M. Mrtinson's |oss. Represent ati ve Kapsner
added that the Saint Miry's fishernen were not fishing
commercially during that year, but that whatever fishing they
wer e doing was for subsistence.

Nunber 1780

STUART JACQUES (ph), noting that he is a menber of the board of
directors for the Association of Building Contractors, said he
was not speaking for the board, and that he was in favor of HB
67. He said the state should not be in the business of
conpeting with and potentially taking work away from the public
sector. He said about 10 years ago, the Al aska State Housing
Corporation becanme a contractor, doing work for other agencies,
and to sone extent, was doing sonething simlar to DOI&PF' s
pi ggybacking with other agencies. In reference to a previous
coorment that if force account projects were not done in the
vill ages, then jobs would be taken away from those vill agers, he
t hought that to be incorrect because the work would still occur
The question would be whether villagers would work those jobs.
He said the answer is a matter of training, and that if the
villagers were trained, contractors would hire them He said
that rural training is part of the answer, if the desire is to
enpl oy people who live in the Bush. He said that $250,000 is a
smal|l part of the budget, depending on one's perspective, and
that to sonme, it is a big nunber. He does not believe that
force account work is done nearly as effectively by the state as
it would be by the contracting sector.

Number 1627

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- February 20, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said he would like to hear a policy
decision fromthe adni ni strati on.

COCHAIR MASEK comented that the finance conmttee could
address concerns about HB 67 that were raised during the
nmeet i ng.

The commttee took an at-ease from2:42 p.m to 2:45 p. m

COCHAIR MASEK asked if the sponsor wanted to respond to
Representati ve Kookesh' s st at enent W th regard to t he
adm ni stration's addressing of Adm nistrative Oder 199.

COCHAIR HOM said the new admnistration would nake its own
decisions as to how it would relate to Adm nistrative Order 199,
and said that to hold the bill for that purpose would not be
prudent .

Nunmber 1540
REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked i f an anmendnent woul d be

ent ert ai ned. She said part of the conprom se that was reached
with the previous working group was they determned it would be

beneficial to have pre- and post- bid conferences where
comunities could weigh in, letting it be known how many workers
were available, and who would be eligible for work. She asked

if such an anendment coul d be consi dered.

CO- CHAI R HOLM declined consideration at this point because this
was a contracts issue, which was not being addressed in this
bill. He said his goal was to try to limt DOT&PF s ability to
contract outside of the process of conpetitive bidding.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH referred to Representative Fate's earlier
commrent of focusing the debate on anpbunt of $250,000, and asked
if the sponsor would consider an anmendnent that would raise the
anount . He said he would appreciate a discussion on the given
anount, or, if not, wondered if the sponsor would entertain a
notion to raise the anount.

CO- CHAIR HOLM respectively declined, saying that at this tine,
he thinks it is appropriate to keep the $250,000 since the sane
nunber is being considered in the Senate version.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said in that case, his vote would be
"no.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- February 20, 2003



CO-CHAIR MASEK nentioned that the bill would be referred to the
House Finance Conmttee, where the dollar amunt wuld be
further considered.

Nunber 1391

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved to report HB 67 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
not e.

Nunmber 1385

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Fate, Kohring,
Holm and WMasek voted in favor of reporting HB 67 from
conm ttee. Representati ves Kapsner and Kookesh voted against
it. Ther ef or e, HB 67 was reported out of the House

Transportation Standing Conmttee by a vote of 4-2.
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:45
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- February 20, 2003



